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TITLE DATE BATE VOL.

Declaration of Trust Known as the Thomas J. 
Harris Trust, dated June 12, 2019

6/12/2019 RA 7-42 1

Docketing Statement 2/3/2023 RA 815-825 11

Emergency Stay Request; Emergency Verified 
Motion to Reconsider; Request for Calcification; 
Notice of Non Hearsay Proof of Thomas Joseph and 
Olga Harris Living Trust

6/22/2022 RA 148-212 2

Last Will & Testament of Thomas Joseph Harris 6/12/2019 RA 1-6 1

Letters Testamentary 4/22/2021 RA 60-61 1

Limited Opposition to Petitioner's Motion for a 
Decision on the Pleadings; Petitioner's Motion 
Declining Oral Argument filed by The Estate of 
Thomas J. Harris and The Thomas J. Harris Trust

12/15/2022 RA 615-620 9

Memorandum of Temporary Assignment 8/5/2022 RA 359 5

Minutes of Hearing 1/6/2023 RA 776 10

Motion to Dismiss filed by the Estate of Thomas J. 
Harris

10/6/2022 RA 367-459 6

Notice of Appeal 6/27/2022 RA 213-214 3

Notice of Appeal filed by Todd Robben 2/3/2023 RA 812-814 11

Notice of Entry of Order 7/15/2022 RA 256-262 3

Respondents, the Estate of Thomas J. Harris and the Thomas J. Harris
Trust, by and through Tara Flanagan, in her capacity as the Personal
Representative of the Estate of Thomas J. Harris and Trustee of the Thomas J.
Harris Trust by and through her Legal Counsel hereby submits her Appendix in
compliance with Nevada Rule of Appellate Procedure 30.



Notice of Entry of Order 2/16/2023 RA 838-853 11

Notice of Hearing 4/15/2022 RA 102-105 1

Notice of Motion for Continuance and Motion for 
Continuance

5/23/2022 RA 138-139 2

Objection to Petitioner Todd Robben's Verified 
Petition to Invalidate The Thomas J. Harris Will 
and Trust; Petitioner's Request for Appointment of 
Counsel Pursuant to NRS 136.200; Emergency 
Request for Stay of Final Distribution; Peremptory 
Challenge to Judge Nathan Tod Young filed by The 
Estate of Thomas J. Harris

12/15/2022 RA 621-708 9

Opposition to Emergency Verified Motion to 
Reconsider; Request for Calcification (SIC); Notice 
of Non Hearsay Proof of the Thomas Joseph and 
Olga Harris Living Trust; Opposition to Emergency 
Stay Request

7/1/2022 RA 215-232 3

Opposition to Petitioner's Motion to Strike 
Respondent's Objection, Motion to Dismiss and 
Motion for Summary Judgment filed by The Estate 
of Thomas J. Harris and The Thomas J. Harris 
Trust

12/30/2022 RA 743-753 10

Order 7/13/2022 RA 253-255 3

Order Appointing Special Administrator 3/11/2021 RA 58-59 1

Order Appointing Successor Executor and Issuing 
Successor Letters Testamentary

7/27/2021 RA 98-101 1

Order Confirming Transfer to Department 1 7/26/2022 RA 357-358 5

Order Dismissing Appeal 7/8/2022 RA 251-252 3

Order Granting Motion for Summary Judgment; 
Motion to Dismiss; & Deeming Petitioner a 
Vexatious Litigant

2/8/2023 RA 826-837 11



Order Granting Petition to Confirm First and Final 
Accounting, Request for Final Distribution, and 
Request for Payment of Professional's Fees and 
Costs

6/22/2022 RA 140-147 2

Order Granting Respondents' Motion to Continue 
Hearing

9/27/2022 RA 364-366 5

Order Setting Hearing 9/6/2022 RA 360-361 5

Order Setting Hearing 11/30/2022 RA 607-608 9

Order Shortening Time 9/19/2022 RA 362-363 5

Order to Proceed in Forma Pauperis 7/26/2022 RA 355-356 5

Order Transferring Case to Department I 7/26/2022 RA 353-354 5

Petition for Appointment of Successor Executor and 
for Issuance of Successor Letters Testamentary

6/25/2021 RA 67-74 1

Petition to Confirm First and Final Accounting, 
Request for Final Distribution, and Request for 
Payment of Professional's Fees and Costs

4/15/2022 RA 106-137 1

Petitioner Todd Robben's Objection to Respondent's 
Motion to Dismiss

10/21/2022 RA 471-514 7

Petitioner Todd Robben's Verified Objection to 
Respondent's Motion for Summary Judgment

10/21/2022 RA 515-556 7

Petitioner, Todd Robben's Notice and Affidavits in 
Support of the Pre-Existing Olga and Thomas J. 
Harris Living Trust with Petitioner Named 
Beneficiary

11/2/2022 RA 580-584 8

Petitioner, Todd Robben's Petition to Invalidate The 
Thomas J. Harris Will and Trust; Petitioner's 
Request for Appointment of Counsel Pursuant to 
NRS 136.200; Emergency Request for Stay of Final 
Distribution; Peremptory Challenge to Judge 
Nathan Tod Young filed by The Estate of Thomas J. 
Harris

7/26/2022 RA 263-352 4



Petitioner's First Amended Reply in Support of 
Motion to Strike Respondent's Objections, Motion to 
Dismiss and Motion for Summary Judgment

1/3/2023 RA 768-775 10

Petitioner's Motion for a Decision on the Pleadings; 
Petitioner's Motion Declining Oral Argument

12/8/2022 RA 609-614 9

Petitioner's Motion to Strike Respondent's 
Objections, Motion to Dismiss and Motion for 
Summary Judgment

12/23/2022 RA 717-725 10

Petitioner's Motion to Strike Respondent's Unlawful 
Surreply

11/7/2022 RA 591-595 8

Petitioner's Notice and Provisional Motion to Strike 
Respondent's Objections, Motion to Dismiss and 
Motion for Summary Judgment

1/3/2023 RA 754-767 10

Petitioner's Reply in Support of Emergency Stay 
Request & Emergency Verified Motion to 
Reconsider; Request for Clarification; Notice of Non 
Hearsay Proof of the Thomas Joseph and Olga 
Harris Living Trust

7/5/2022 RA 233-250 3

Petitioner's Reply in Support of Motion to Strike 
Respondents Unlawful Surreply

11/21/2022 RA 600-606 9

Petitioner's Verified Reply in Support of Motion for 
a Decision on the Pleadings; Petitioner's Motion 
Declining Oral Argument

12/23/2022 RA 726-742 10

Reply in Support of Motion to Dismiss 10/31/2022 RA 565-579 8

Request to Appear Remotely via Zoom for Court 
Appearance/Hearing

12/28/2022 RA 854-855 11

Resignation of Trustee and Acceptance by Successor 
Trustee of the Thomas J. Harris Trust dated June 
12, 2019

5/17/2021 RA 62-66 1



Submission of Proposed Order Granting Motion for 
SummaryJudgment; Motion to Dismiss; & Deeming 
Petitioner a Vexatious Litigant

1/10/2023 RA 800-811 11

The Thomas J. Harris Trust's Motion for Summary 
Judgment

10/6/2022 RA 460-470 7

The Thomas J. Harris Trust's Objection & Response 
to Todd Robben's Petition to Invalidate the Trust

12/15/2022 RA 709-716 10

The Thomas J. Harris Trust's Opposition to Motion 
to Strike

11/14/2022 RA 596-599 8

The Thomas J. Harris Trust's Reply Points & 
Authorities in Support of its Motion for Summary 
Judgment

10/31/2022 RA 557-564 8

The Thomas J. Harris Trust's Supplemental Brief to 
its Motion for Summary Judgment Addressing 
Fugitive Affidavits Filed by Petitioner Todd Robben

11/4/2022 RA 585-590 8

Thomas A. Harris's Response to Petition for 
Appointment of Successor Executor, Etc.

7/22/2021 RA 75-97 1

Transcript of January 6, 2023 Hearing 1/6/2023 RA 777-799 11

Verified Petition for Letters of Special 
Administration (NRS 140.010) and for Probate of 
Will and Issuance of Letters Testamentary (NRS 
136.090)

3/10/2021 RA 43-57 1

.
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Todd Robben 
In Pro per 
PO Box 4251 
Sonora, CA 95370 
Robben.ty@gmail.com 
(209)540-7713

IN THE NINTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA 

IN RE: THE ESTATE OF THOMAS 

JOSEPH HARRIS, 

          Deceased 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

CASE NO.: 2021 pb00034 

DEPARTMENT: 1 

NOTICE OF MOTION FOR  
CONTINUANCE AND MOTION FOR 
CONTINUANCE 

. 

This notice and motion for continuance is made by Todd C. Robben, the 

stepson of Thomas J. Harris. Todd C. Robben only recently learned of the death of 

Thomas J. Harris and Jeff D. Robben. This motion will be filed and made orally at the 

petition hearing on May 24th at 1:00pm in Department 1. This motion is made on the 

following points and authority. 

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITY 

Todd C. Robben was not notified of the death of Thomas J. Harris or Jeff D. 

Robben or any wills or trusts until the beginning on May 2022.  Pursuant to local rule 

DCR 9 and NRS 155.160, Todd C. Robben objects to any final distribution and 
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requests a continuance to obtain counsel and file legal arguments and affidavits 

showing Jeff D. Robben had undue influence over Thomas J. Harris to which let to the 

disinheritance of Todd C. Robben in the last will and testament of Thomas J. Harris 

and Thomas J. Harris trust. 

There appears to be no affidavit and reason  as to why Todd C. Robben was 

disinherited. Nevada also mandate mandatory mediation pursuant to NRS 164.930.  

In addition to undue influence, there appears to be fraud, embezzlement, 

misappropriation and theft of assets and they manner of how the trust was managed.  

See NRS 155.007 and NRCP Rule 60. 

 

RELIEF REQUEST 

 

Todd C. Robben objects to the final distribution and requests a continuance of 

up to six months to obtain legal counsel and evidence. 

 

 

     Respectfully signed under penalty of perjury, 

 

     /s/ Todd Robben 

     05/23/2022 
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CASE NO.: 2021 PB00034 

DEPT NO.: I RECEIVED 
JUN 2 2 2022 

Douglas County 
District Court Cleric 

-M. CARNEY . -

IN THE NINTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA 

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF DOUGLAS 

8 IN RE: 

9 THE ESTATE OF THOMAS JOSEPH 
HARRIS, 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

Deceased 
---------------~/ 

ORDER GRANTING PETITION TO CONFIRM FIRST AND FINAL 
ACCOUNTING, REQUEST FOR FINAL DISTRIBUTION, AND REQUEST 

FOR PAYMENT OF PROFESSIONAL'S FEES AND COSTS 

Tara M. Flanagan, in her capacity as the Court appointed Personal 

16 Representative (aka "Successor Executor") of the Estate of Thomas Joseph Harris 

17 (the "Estate"), by and through her counsel of record, F. McClure Wallace and Patrick 

18 R. Millsap of Wallace & Millsap, has presented her Petition to Confirm First and 

19 Final Accounting, Request for Final Distribution and Request for Payment o 

20 Professional Fees and Costs (the "Petition"). 

21 The Court conducted a properly noticed hearing on the Petition on May 24, 

22 2022. The Court received no objections to the Petition. However, also on or about 

23 May 24, 2022, Mr. Todd Robben filed a Notice of Motion for Continuance and Motion 

24 for Continuance requesting up to a six-month continuance of the matter. Based on 

25 the presentations of Mr. Robben and Counsel for the Estate at the hearing, the Court 

26 granted Mr. Robben a short extension to demonstrate a basis upon which he could 

27 assert any standing in this matter, continuing the hearing on the Petition to June 21 , 

28 2022. Thereafter, Mr. Robben filed a Request for Appointment of Counsel on June 15, 

Page 1 of 8 
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2022. The Court then conducted a continued hearing for approval of the Petition on 

June 21, 2022. Again, the Court received no objections to the Petition beyond the 

filings and presentation of Mr. Robben. Counsel for the Estate argued in favor o 

granting the Petition and presented legal arguments in opposition to Mr. Robben's 

filings and oral presentation, namely that Mr. Robben is not an interested person in 

this matter as defined by NRS 132.185, and as such lacks standing to object to the 

Petition or be appointed counsel by the Court pursuant to NRS 136.200. 

8 

9 

10 

Having considered the Personal Representative's Petition, Mr. Todd Robben's 

filings, and having heard the presentation of the Personal Representative by and 

through her Counsel, as well as the presentation of Mr. Todd Robben, appearing in 

11 pro per, the Court finds as follows: 

12 

13 1. 

FINDINGS AND ORDER 

Thomas Joseph Harris (the "Decedent") died on December 30, 2019, as 

14 a resident of Douglas County, Nevada. 

15 2. The Decedent's death was caused by a motor vehicle accident in Washoe 

16 County, Nevada on or about December 19, 2019. The Decedent was not at fault for 

17 the motor vehicle accident. 

18 3. The Last Will and Testament of Thomas Joseph Harris was duly lodged 

19 with this Court on April 6, 2021. 

20 4. The Decedent's Last Will and Testament is a pour over will, identifying 

21 the Decedent's Trust as the beneficiary of his Will. The Decedent's Trust is The 

22 Declaration of Trust Known as the Thomas J. Harris Trust, Dated June 12, 2019 (the 

23 "Decedent's Trust" or the "Trust"). 

24 5. The Decedent's Last Will and Testament identified the following line o 

25 Executors: Jeff Robben, Scott Barton, and Tara Flanagan. 

26 6. On March 10, 2021, Scott Barton filed his Verified Petition for Letters o 

27 Special Administration (NRS 140. 01 0) and for Probate of Will and Issuance of Letters 

28 Testamentary (NRS 136.090). Mr. Barton was the appropriate individual to seek 
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1 appointment as the Personal Representative of the Estate because the first 

2 nominated executor, Mr. Robben, had passed away on November 11, 2020. 

3 7. On April 6, 2021, this Court entered its Order Admitting Will to Probate 

4 and Issuing Letters Testamentary appointing Scott Barton to serve as the Personal 

5 Representative of the Estate. Consistent with the Court's Order, Letters 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Testamentary were issued to Scott Barton on April 22, 2021. 

8. Upon information and belief, pursuant to his appointment as the 

Estate's Personal Representative, Scott Barton began his efforts to administer the 

Decedent's Estate. Namely for purposes of this Petition, Mr. Barton continued Mr. 

Robben's previously initiated efforts to prosecute the wrongful death claims related 

to the Decedent's death, including retaining Ms. Julie Throop, Esq. to represent the 

Estate regarding the wrongful death of the Decedent. 

9. By and through its retained litigation Counsel, the Estate was able to 

reach a pre-litigation resolution of all claims regarding the wrongful death of the 

Decedent, as discussed in greater detail below. 

10. Thereafter, and before completing the negotiated settlement or gaining 

Court approval of the settlement on behalf of the Estate, Scott Barton notified Tara 

Flanagan he was resigning as the Personal Representative of the Estate. 

11. Consistent with her nomination as the next named executor of the 

Estate by the Decedent's Will, Ms. Flanagan filed her Petition for Appointment o 

Successor Executor and for Issuance of Letters Testamentary on June 25, 2021. 

12. On July 27, 2021, the Court entered its Order Appointing Successor 

Executor and Issuing Successor Letters Testamentary, and on August 17, 2021, the 

Court issued Letters Testamentary to Tara M. Flanagan. 

13. Pursuant to her appointment as the Personal Representative of the 

Estate, on August 30, 2021, Ms. Flanagan filed her Petition to Approve Settlemen 

(the "Petition"), seeking this Court's confirmation of the settlement negotiated by Mr. 

Barton and Ms. Throop on behalf of the Estate regarding the Decedent's death, as 
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1 well as authorizing Ms. Flanagan, in her capacity as the Estate's Personal 

2 Representative, to complete all remaining steps necessary to effectuate the 

3 settlement for the benefit of the Estate. 

4 14. Thereafter, the Court held a hearing on September 9, 2021 on the 

5 Personal Representative's Petition. The hearing was attended by Thomas A. Harris, 

6 Counsel for Mr. Thomas A. Harris, the Personal Representative, Counsel for the 

7 Personal Representative, and the Estate's wrongful death Counsel, Julie Throop, Esq. 

8 At the hearing the Judge heard from all Counsel regarding the issue of Ms. Throop's 

9 attorney fees as raised by Mr. Thomas A. Harris by and through his Counsel. At the 

10 conclusion of the hearing, Mr. Harris withdrew any objection he had previously 

11 presented to Ms. Throop's fees incurred as wrongful death Counsel for the Estate. As 

12 a result, there is no objection before the Court to the Petition to Approve the 

13 Settlement filed by the Personal Representative, nor any objection to the settlement 

14 placed before the Court for confirmation. 

15 15. On September 9, 2021 the Court entered its Order Granting Petition to 

16 Approve Settlement. 

17 16. Pursuant to the Court's Order Granting Petition to Approve Settlement 

18 Tara M. Flanagan, in her capacity as the Estate's Personal Representative, finalized 

19 the settlement for the benefit of the Estate and deposited all settlement proceeds in 

20 the Estate's bank account. The Court finds Ms. Flanagan's efforts in this regard to 

21 have been dutifully and properly fulfilled. 

22 17. On April 15, 2022, the Personal Representative filed the subject Petition 

23 to Confirm First and Final Accounting, Request for Final Distribution, and Request 

24 for Payment of Professional's Fees and Costs. 

25 18. Shortly thereafter, the Estate's Inventory and Record of Value was 

26 appropriately filed. 

27 19. As reported m the Personal Representative's Petition, Notice to 

28 Creditors was properly filed on April 22, 2021, and published in the Record Courier 
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1 on April 29, May 6, and May 13, 2021. Proof of Publication of the Notice to Creditors 

2 was filed with the Court on May 20, 2021. No creditor's claims were filed against the 

3 Estate. 

4 20. All tax returns appropriately required of the Decedent have been filed. 

5 A final estate tax return will be filed. There is no known liability due on this return. 

6 21. The Administrator has received no other communication or inquiry from 

7 any other taxing authority or any other claimant. 

8 22. The acts of the Tara Flanagan, in her capacity as the Successor 

9 Executor, are ordinary, necessary, and reasonable without exception. 

10 23. After all administrative expenses, legal expenses, and claims have been 

11 paid, all remaining assets, including any after discovered assets, will be distributed 

12 to the Estate's sole beneficiary, the Thomas J. Harris Trust, dated June 12, 2019. 

13 24. The time necessary for the Successor Executor to complete the tasks 

14 required of her has been ordinary, necessary, and reasonable. 

15 25. The gross value of the Estate for computing the Petitioner's Commission 

16 is $620,000.00. 

17 26. Pursuant to NRS 150.020, the Petitioner is entitled to $13,550.00 in 

18 ordinary compensation. 

19 

20 

27. 

28. 

Counsel has rendered valuable services to the Petitioner. 

The rates charged by Wallace & Millsap LLC are ordinary, necessary, 

21 and reasonable. 

22 29. The sel'Vl.ces performed by Wallace & Millsap LLC are appropriate, 

23 necessary, and reasonable without exception. 

24 

25 fees. 

26 

30. 

31. 

27 advanced. 

28 32. 

Wallace & Millsap LLC has requested the sum $20,638.00 in attorney's 

Wallace & Millsap LLC has requested the sum of $994. 78 for costs 

Finally, upon thorough review by this court, including review of Mr. 
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1 Robben's written filings and hearing Mr. Robben's oral presentation at both the May 

2 24, 2022 hearing as well as the June 21, 2022 continued hearing, the Court 

3 determines Mr. Robben is not an "interested person" in this Estate as defined by NRS 

4 132.185, and as such has no standing to object to the Petition, be appointed Counsel, 

5 or otherwise appear in this proceeding. Specifically, the Court heard from Mr. 

6 Robben, and after giving him additional time, Mr. Robben was unable to present any 

7 legal basis or admissible evidence to potentially allow a determination he i~ p 

8 interested person in this Estate. Therefore, Mr. Todd Robben is not an interest 

9 person to this Estate, and as such has no standing to oppose or object to the Petition, 

10 or to otherwise appear in these proceedings. 

11 

12 WHEREFORE, as a result of the foregoing, considering the Petition to 

13 Confirm First and Final Accounting, Request for Final Distribution, and Request for 

14 Payment of Professional's Fees and Costs filed by the Personal Representative, 

15 considering Mr. Todd Robben's Notice of Motion for Continuance and Motion for 

16 Continuance, and hearing the presentation of Counsel and Mr. Robben, the Court 

17 having good cause ORDERS as follows-: 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

A. The First and Final Accounting of the Estate 1s approved without 

exception. 

B. The acts of the Personal Representative with respect to the 

administration of the Estate are confirmed without exception 

C. It was proper to generally administer this Estate. 

D. There were no known prior distributions. 

E. The Personal Representative's requested ordinary fees and costs are 

necessary and reasonable in all respects. 

F. The Personal Representative is authorized and directed to pay hersel 

$13,550.00 in ordinary fees. 
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G. All actions and services rendered by Counsel for the Personal 

Representative were reasonable and appropriate. 

H. Counsel for the Personal Representative's requested fees and costs were 

necessary and reasonable in all respects. 

I. The Personal Representative is authorized and directed to pay the law 

firm of Wallace & Millsap LLC, the sum of $20,638.00 as compensation 

for legal services rendered, and to be rendered by said attorney and 

paralegal for the benefit of the Estate. 

J. The Personal Representative is authorized and directed to pay the law 

firm of Wallace & Millsap LLC, the sum of $994.78 for costs advanced 

and to be advanced in this Estate, for a total payment of fees and costs 

in the amount of $21,632.78. 

K. The Personal Representative is authorized and directed to holdback 

$5,000.00 for completion of all the Estate's tax needs, including paying 

the final accounting fees of the Estate. 

L. After all administrative expenses and professional fees are paid, the 

Personal Representative is authorized and directed to distribute the 

Estate's remaining assets, including any after discovered assets to The 

Declaration of Trust Known as the Thomas J. Harris Trust, Dated June 

12, 2019, by and through Tara Flanagan as Successor Trustee. 
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M. The Personal Representative shall complete any and all remaining task 

necessary to complete the administration of this Estate, at which time 

the Executor shall request her discharge from this Court. 

N . Mr. Todd Robben is not an interested person in this matter, has no 

standing in the proceedings, and as such his Request for Appointment 

of Counsel is denied. 

IT IS SO ORDERED this 2, L-, day oz 2. ? 

D ct Court ' ---
Submitted by: 

WALLACE & MILLSAP 

Is I F. McClure Wallace 

F. MCCLURE WALLACE, ESQ. 
State Bar No. 10264 
PATRICK R. MILLSAP, ESQ. 
State Bar No. 12043 
WALLACE & MILLSAP LLC 
510 West Plumb Lane, Suite A 
Reno, Nevada 89509 
(775) 683-9599 Telephone 
(775) 683-9597 Fax 

23 Attorneys for Petitioner 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 
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 8                TRANSCRIPT OF AUDIO-RECORDED

 9                  HEARING IN THE MATTER OF

10   TODD ROBBEN V. THE ESTATE OF THOMAS J. HARRIS & THOMAS

11                       J. HARRIS TRUST

12

13                      CASE NO. PB-00116

14

15                       JANUARY 6, 2023

16

17

18

19

20

21        Litigation Services Order Number:  1002142

22

23

24

25

0002

 1                    P R O C E E D I N G S

 2        THE COURT:  This is the time set for hearing in

 3   case PB-00119, [inaudible] Todd Robben versus the

 4   estate of Thomas J. Harris and the Thomas J. Harris

 5   Trust.

 6        The record should reflect that the estate of

 7   Thomas Harris and the Thomas Trust or Thomas Harris

 8   Trust is represented by Mr. McClure, who is present,

 9   and appearing by Zoom is -- I presume you are Mr.

10   Robben.

11        MR. ROBBEN:  That's right.

12        THE COURT:  All right, and you are not

13   represented. Is that correct?

14        MR. ROBBEN:  That is correct, yes, [inaudible].

15        THE COURT:  All right. Mr. Robben, you filed a

16   motion, uh, to have this case and all of the

17   underlying motions decided on the case -- the -- your

18   petition, uh, the -- all of the numerous motions be

19   decided without oral argument. Is that correct?

20        MR. ROBBEN:  I did put that in there and I also

21   filed a motion to strike these, uh, motions to

22   dismiss, motion for summary judgment and the

23   objections [inaudible].

24        THE COURT:  Well, that's not the question I asked

25   you. You -- do you recall filing the motion to have
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 1   this case decided without oral argument?

 2        MR. ROBBEN:  I didn't request an oral argument

 3   and neither did the -- did the, uh, other party.

 4        THE COURT:  I can't hear you. You're going to --

 5   if you've got a microphone, you're going to have to

 6   speak into it.

 7        MR. ROBBEN:  I am speaking into it.

 8        THE COURT:  Well, speak louder.

 9        MR. ROBBEN:  The other party didn't request a

10   hearing and neither did I, sir.

11        THE COURT:  All right. Mr. McClure?

12        MR. MCCLURE:  Yes, Your Honor.

13        THE COURT:  Do you have any objection to this

14   court proceeding on this case without oral argument?

15        MR. MCCLURE:  Your Honor, I have no objection to

16   the -- to this court deciding the motion -- the trust

17   motion for summary judgment and the estate's motion to

18   dismiss without oral argument.

19        We would object, and we filed the limited

20   objection, stating we would object --

21        THE COURT:  I -- I -- I am aware of that.

22        MR. MCCLURE:  We would object to then this court

23   deciding the underlying petition as both the trust and

24   the estate have objected and denied all the

25   allegations and claims for relief therein making it
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 1   potentially a contested matter.

 2        So we would object to that. We would object to

 3   the court deciding the motion to strike, because there

 4   were new filings filed by Mr. Robben this week that we

 5   still have the opportunity to oppose.

 6        But as to the dispositive motions, we have no

 7   objections to this court deciding those on the

 8   briefing.

 9        THE COURT:  All right. The first motion then that

10   the court is going to address is the motion to dismiss

11   the allegations against the state. That motion is

12   granted and the reason is, it's [inaudible].

13        Uh, it's already been decided. It's already gone

14   to the Supreme Court on appeal. It's been affirmed.

15   The petitioner in that case was found by this court or

16   by the ninth judicial district, to have no standing

17   because Mr. Robben was not an interested party.

18        And like I say, that was affirmed by the Supreme

19   Court, so the petition to dismiss is granted.

20   Regarding the motion for summary judgment, well, let's

21   -- let's do this. Let's do this another way.

22        MR. ROBBEN:  Never even had my motion to strike

23   considered. This is ridiculous. You're -- you're

24   deciding this without considering my motion to

25   [inaudible] their motion to dismiss because their
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 1   motion to dismiss was not filed properly.

 2        You're not -- you're not even reading the

 3   motions. You don't know what's going on. This is

 4   crazy.

 5        THE COURT:  Well then the Court's [inaudible]

 6   judicial notice that the Supreme Court of the state of

 7   Nevada affirmed the finding by the court, by the ninth

 8   judicial court --

 9        MR. ROBBEN:  Yeah, that -- that's because I

10   wasn't party, sir.

11        THE COURT:  Don't interrupt me, Mr. Robben.

12        MR. ROBBEN:  [inaudible]

13        THE COURT:  That you were not an interested

14   person in the will and that -- that issue is gone.

15   It's already been decided and --

16        MR. ROBBEN:  It wasn't decided, because I wasn't

17   a party.

18        THE COURT:  Don't interrupt me, Mr. Robben.

19        MR. ROBBEN:  You said I wasn't an interested

20   party.

21        THE COURT:  Actually what this case is, with the

22   foot high paper in it, uh, this is actually a -- a

23   case of sound of fury signifying nothing.

24        Before -- before the petitioner in this case has

25   any standing whatsoever to contest a will, which has
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 1   already been decided, or in this case the trust, you

 2   first have to -- the court first has to determine that

 3   you are an interested person pursuant to NRS 132.185

 4   which states that one whose right or interest under an

 5   estate or trust may be materially affected by the

 6   decision of a fiduciary or decision of the court.

 7        If a party is an interested party, they may

 8   participate in a probate action. So --

 9        MR. ROBBEN:  That's where the Blackfoot case

10   comes in, but you obviously didn't read anything and

11   you're carrying on with the motion. You never even

12   decided my motion to strike, sir. This is a kangaroo

13   court. Um, I'm just going to go ahead and file my

14   appeal.

15        THE COURT:  Okay. Mr. Robbens -- Mr. Robbens

16   don't interrupt this court again or I will tell you

17   that you have nothing whatsoever to say, which in this

18   case, since we're not having an argument, you don't

19   have anything to say.

20        We're deciding this --

21        MR. ROBBEN:  I object to you even -- I filed the

22   motion to --

23        THE COURT:  Okay.

24        MR. ROBBEN:  -- you're not -- you're not

25   considering my motions that I filed. You went right to
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 1   their motion to strike or to dismiss my -- my uh, uh,

 2   complaint without my motion to strike, because their

 3   complaint was not filed.

 4        You -- you haven't read anything, sir, so, uh,

 5   it's a kangaroo court and, uh, as far as the Supreme

 6   Court of Nevada, it's not res judicata because I was

 7   never a party. They said I had to file the way I filed

 8   and if you read the Blackfoot case from California, I

 9   am an interested party.

10        So we'll go ahead and let the Nevada Supreme

11   Court hear this and create that caselaw and that's why

12   I filed everything I filed, so I've, uh, made my

13   objections and this is just a kangaroo court, sir.

14        You haven't heard anything or read anything or

15   discussed my motion to strike their motion to dismiss,

16   so you went right into their motion to dismiss when it

17   wasn't even filed properly.

18        So I -- it's just a kangaroo court. You didn't

19   read anything and they didn't ask for this hearing. I

20   objected to this hearing and it's just clear that you

21   didn't read anything, sir. So, um, I'm going to appeal

22   the whole thing.

23        And I never consented to a retiring judge anyhow.

24        THE COURT:  I've heard enough, Mr. Robbens.

25        MR. ROBBEN:  [inaudible] judicial [inaudible].
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 1        THE COURT:  Turn his microphone or make him not

 2   speak over the speaker.

 3        MALE 1:  [inaudible]

 4        THE COURT:  This court finds regarding the trust

 5   that Mr. Robbens is not an interested person pursuant

 6   to Nevada law. He has no standing to object to the

 7   terms of the trust. He is not mentioned as a

 8   beneficiary in the trust.

 9        So that's what makes him a non-interested person.

10   Mr. Robbens has had months to produce evidence showing

11   that he is an interested person. One of the ways that

12   he could have done that was by showing that there was

13   a previous trust in which he was a beneficiary.

14        He has not done that. There has been no evidence

15   that he has been the beneficiary in a previous trust.

16   In numerous motions, Mr. Robbens has claimed that he

17   has evidence, but that has never been produced.

18        He is under the mistaken belief that if he simply

19   declares unilaterally that there was fraud, that there

20   was undue influence, that there was lack of capacity

21   or any other -- any other fact that might negate the

22   terms of the current trust that is before the court

23   today to be sure.

24        He has alleged that he has witnesses that can

25   testify to the terms of a previous will and/or I'm
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 1   sorry, will and trust in which he was a beneficiary.

 2   Those have not been produced in any evidentiary form

 3   other than by a mere allegation.

 4        He is in the mistaken belief, pursuant to a

 5   California case cited as Barefoot, that all that is

 6   necessary is that someone say, in this case Mr.

 7   Robbens, that there was fraud, there was undue

 8   influence and therefore the -- the terms of the -- the

 9   trust are not valid.

10        But again, there is absolutely no evidence

11   produced by Mr. Robbens to back up his claims. He does

12   have exhibits to his petition, none of which establish

13   that he is a beneficiary in any previous trust.

14        The case that he does cite, the Barefoot v.

15   Jennings, I believe it is, that once he brings that up

16   then the burden shifts to, in this case, the -- the

17   trust with an almost impossible burden of clear and

18   convincing to negate the allegations by, in this case,

19   the petitioner.

20        Mr. Robbens misunderstands the California case,

21   which is not binding on this court in any -- in any

22   event. The Barefoot court said that, uh, essentially

23   do not misread their opinion to be that anyone can

24   oppose a will or a trust simply by saying that they're

25   an interested party.

0010

 1        They used the terms that a well-pleaded

 2   allegations showing that they have an interest in a

 3   trust, which requires some modicum of proof from a

 4   petitioner.

 5        Again, for the third time, Mr. Robbens had -- has

 6   produced no admissible competent evidence that he is a

 7   beneficiary to any of the -- the wills or estates or

 8   trusts in this case.

 9        The court has found that Mr. Robbens is not an

10   interested party in this case, which means that all of

11   the -- all of the motions, all of the filings that he

12   has made, are of no value to this court because Mr.

13   Robbens has no standing to contest the will.

14        By extension, the motion for summary judgment is

15   also granted even though the court has found that the

16   original petition is -- does not concur standing or an

17   interested person to Mr. Robbens.

18        And Mr. McClure, you're going to prepare the

19   order.

20        MR. MCCLURE:  Very well, Your Honor. We'll --

21   we'll --

22        THE COURT:  Do you have any questions?

23        MR. MCCLURE:  Your Honor, just to clarify that

24   given the court's granting of the --

25        THE COURT:  Wait. Mr. McClure, speak up.
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 1        MR. MCCLURE:  I apologize, Your Honor. Given the

 2   court's granting of the motion to dismiss and the

 3   motion for summary judgment, the order will reflect

 4   that all under -- other outstanding motion practice is

 5   denied as being moot, is that correct?

 6        THE COURT:  They are denied because this court

 7   has found that Mr. Robbens has no standing and so the

 8   -- the motions have -- have no legal validity.

 9        MR. MCCLURE:  Thank you, Your Honor. We will

10   prepare the order, uh, in accordance with local rule.

11        THE COURT:  Wait just a minute. You can turn Mr.

12   Robbens back on if he wants to say anything. If he has

13   any --

14        MR. MCCLURE:  Your Honor, we would --

15        MR. ROBBEN:  I'll be filing my notice of appeal,

16   because [inaudible] their -- their -- my motion to

17   strike their motion for summary judgment, motion to

18   dismiss wasn't even considered in this.

19        That argued standing and I've got a great case,

20   so we're going to go ahead and let the Supreme Court

21   hear this and, uh, unconstitutional issues will, uh,

22   take it all the way to the U.S. Supreme Court and I

23   didn't consent to you anyhow.

24        You're a retired judge with no ethics. Very

25   unethical. Probably a child molester like the rest.
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 1        THE COURT:  Well, Mr. Robbens, do what you think

 2   you need to do.

 3        MR. MCCLURE:  Your Honor, if I may, before we --

 4   before we recess this proceeding?

 5        THE COURT:  Say it again?

 6        MR. MCCLURE:  If I may, before we recess this

 7   proceeding, in light of the history of this case, the

 8   filings in this case and the conduct in this case, the

 9   trust and the estate -- in light of this case, Your

10   Honor, the filing history and the events of this

11   hearing, the estate and the trust would like to make

12   an oral motion to have Mr. Robben deemed a vexatious

13   litigant pursuant to NRS 155.165.

14        THE COURT:  What?

15        MR. MCCLURE:  To have Mr. Robben deemed a

16   vexatious litigant pursuant to NRS 155.165. The

17   purpose of that is replete -- or I'm sorry, Judge.

18        The basis for that is replete through the filings

19   of this case and through the conduct at the hearings

20   in this case and is necessary because the filing of

21   Mr. -- or the finding that Mr. Robben is a vexatious

22   litigant will prevent him from continually serially

23   filing additional and new cases which work to the

24   detriment of the actual beneficiaries of this trust,

25   who then must see the trust be funded to pay for legal
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 1   defense.

 2        We feel it is necessary to protect the trust and

 3   estate. It is a necessary basis upon which we may

 4   request our attorney's fees and costs and it is also

 5   necessary to protect the trust from repetitive and

 6   serial filings.

 7        And we request the court make that finding as

 8   part of this order in the conclusion of this case.

 9        THE COURT:  Well, it appears Mr. Robbens has

10   left, so the order is granted.

11        MR. MCCLURE:  Thank you, Your Honor.

12        THE COURT:  Or motion, not your order. Court's in

13   recess.

14        MALE 2:  [inaudible]

15        BAILIFF:  All rise.
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 1

 2

 3        I, Chris Naaden, a transcriber, hereby declare

 4   under penalty of perjury that to the best of my

 5   ability the above 13 pages contain a full, true and

 6   correct transcription of the tape-recording that I

 7   received regarding the event listed on the caption on

 8   page 1.

 9

10        I further declare that I have no interest in the

11   event of the action.

12

13        July 11, 2023

14        Chris Naaden
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 4  protection andsecurity of patient health information.Notice is
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 6  proceedings, and transcript exhibits, may contain patient health

 7  information that is protected from unauthorized access, use and
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           1                      P R O C E E D I N G S 


           2          THE COURT:  This is the time set for hearing in 


           3     case PB-00119, [inaudible] Todd Robben versus the 


           4     estate of Thomas J. Harris and the Thomas J. Harris 


           5     Trust.  


           6          The record should reflect that the estate of 


           7     Thomas Harris and the Thomas Trust or Thomas Harris 


           8     Trust is represented by Mr. McClure, who is present, 


           9     and appearing by Zoom is -- I presume you are Mr. 


          10     Robben. 


          11          MR. ROBBEN:  That's right. 


          12          THE COURT:  All right, and you are not 


          13     represented. Is that correct? 


          14          MR. ROBBEN:  That is correct, yes, [inaudible]. 


          15          THE COURT:  All right. Mr. Robben, you filed a 


          16     motion, uh, to have this case and all of the 


          17     underlying motions decided on the case -- the -- your 


          18     petition, uh, the -- all of the numerous motions be 


          19     decided without oral argument. Is that correct? 


          20          MR. ROBBEN:  I did put that in there and I also 


          21     filed a motion to strike these, uh, motions to 


          22     dismiss, motion for summary judgment and the 


          23     objections [inaudible]. 


          24          THE COURT:  Well, that's not the question I asked 


          25     you. You -- do you recall filing the motion to have 
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           1     this case decided without oral argument? 


           2          MR. ROBBEN:  I didn't request an oral argument 


           3     and neither did the -- did the, uh, other party. 


           4          THE COURT:  I can't hear you. You're going to -- 


           5     if you've got a microphone, you're going to have to 


           6     speak into it. 


           7          MR. ROBBEN:  I am speaking into it. 


           8          THE COURT:  Well, speak louder. 


           9          MR. ROBBEN:  The other party didn't request a 


          10     hearing and neither did I, sir. 


          11          THE COURT:  All right. Mr. McClure? 


          12          MR. MCCLURE:  Yes, Your Honor. 


          13          THE COURT:  Do you have any objection to this 


          14     court proceeding on this case without oral argument? 


          15          MR. MCCLURE:  Your Honor, I have no objection to 


          16     the -- to this court deciding the motion -- the trust 


          17     motion for summary judgment and the estate's motion to 


          18     dismiss without oral argument. 


          19          We would object, and we filed the limited 


          20     objection, stating we would object -- 


          21          THE COURT:  I -- I -- I am aware of that. 


          22          MR. MCCLURE:  We would object to then this court 


          23     deciding the underlying petition as both the trust and 


          24     the estate have objected and denied all the 


          25     allegations and claims for relief therein making it 
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           1     potentially a contested matter. 


           2          So we would object to that. We would object to 


           3     the court deciding the motion to strike, because there 


           4     were new filings filed by Mr. Robben this week that we 


           5     still have the opportunity to oppose. 


           6          But as to the dispositive motions, we have no 


           7     objections to this court deciding those on the 


           8     briefing. 


           9          THE COURT:  All right. The first motion then that 


          10     the court is going to address is the motion to dismiss 


          11     the allegations against the state. That motion is 


          12     granted and the reason is, it's [inaudible]. 


          13          Uh, it's already been decided. It's already gone 


          14     to the Supreme Court on appeal. It's been affirmed. 


          15     The petitioner in that case was found by this court or 


          16     by the ninth judicial district, to have no standing 


          17     because Mr. Robben was not an interested party. 


          18          And like I say, that was affirmed by the Supreme 


          19     Court, so the petition to dismiss is granted. 


          20     Regarding the motion for summary judgment, well, let's 


          21     -- let's do this. Let's do this another way. 


          22          MR. ROBBEN:  Never even had my motion to strike 


          23     considered. This is ridiculous. You're -- you're 


          24     deciding this without considering my motion to 


          25     [inaudible] their motion to dismiss because their 
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           1     motion to dismiss was not filed properly. 


           2          You're not -- you're not even reading the 


           3     motions. You don't know what's going on. This is 


           4     crazy. 


           5          THE COURT:  Well then the Court's [inaudible] 


           6     judicial notice that the Supreme Court of the state of 


           7     Nevada affirmed the finding by the court, by the ninth 


           8     judicial court -- 


           9          MR. ROBBEN:  Yeah, that -- that's because I 


          10     wasn't party, sir. 


          11          THE COURT:  Don't interrupt me, Mr. Robben. 


          12          MR. ROBBEN:  [inaudible] 


          13          THE COURT:  That you were not an interested 


          14     person in the will and that -- that issue is gone. 


          15     It's already been decided and -- 


          16          MR. ROBBEN:  It wasn't decided, because I wasn't 


          17     a party. 


          18          THE COURT:  Don't interrupt me, Mr. Robben. 


          19          MR. ROBBEN:  You said I wasn't an interested 


          20     party. 


          21          THE COURT:  Actually what this case is, with the 


          22     foot high paper in it, uh, this is actually a -- a 


          23     case of sound of fury signifying nothing.  


          24          Before -- before the petitioner in this case has 


          25     any standing whatsoever to contest a will, which has 
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           1     already been decided, or in this case the trust, you 


           2     first have to -- the court first has to determine that 


           3     you are an interested person pursuant to NRS 132.185 


           4     which states that one whose right or interest under an 


           5     estate or trust may be materially affected by the 


           6     decision of a fiduciary or decision of the court. 


           7          If a party is an interested party, they may 


           8     participate in a probate action. So -- 


           9          MR. ROBBEN:  That's where the Blackfoot case 


          10     comes in, but you obviously didn't read anything and 


          11     you're carrying on with the motion. You never even 


          12     decided my motion to strike, sir. This is a kangaroo 


          13     court. Um, I'm just going to go ahead and file my 


          14     appeal. 


          15          THE COURT:  Okay. Mr. Robbens -- Mr. Robbens 


          16     don't interrupt this court again or I will tell you 


          17     that you have nothing whatsoever to say, which in this 


          18     case, since we're not having an argument, you don't 


          19     have anything to say. 


          20          We're deciding this -- 


          21          MR. ROBBEN:  I object to you even -- I filed the 


          22     motion to -- 


          23          THE COURT:  Okay. 


          24          MR. ROBBEN:  -- you're not -- you're not 


          25     considering my motions that I filed. You went right to 
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           1     their motion to strike or to dismiss my -- my uh, uh, 


           2     complaint without my motion to strike, because their 


           3     complaint was not filed. 


           4          You -- you haven't read anything, sir, so, uh, 


           5     it's a kangaroo court and, uh, as far as the Supreme 


           6     Court of Nevada, it's not res judicata because I was 


           7     never a party. They said I had to file the way I filed 


           8     and if you read the Blackfoot case from California, I 


           9     am an interested party. 


          10          So we'll go ahead and let the Nevada Supreme 


          11     Court hear this and create that caselaw and that's why 


          12     I filed everything I filed, so I've, uh, made my 


          13     objections and this is just a kangaroo court, sir.  


          14          You haven't heard anything or read anything or 


          15     discussed my motion to strike their motion to dismiss, 


          16     so you went right into their motion to dismiss when it 


          17     wasn't even filed properly. 


          18          So I -- it's just a kangaroo court. You didn't 


          19     read anything and they didn't ask for this hearing. I 


          20     objected to this hearing and it's just clear that you 


          21     didn't read anything, sir. So, um, I'm going to appeal 


          22     the whole thing. 


          23          And I never consented to a retiring judge anyhow. 


          24          THE COURT:  I've heard enough, Mr. Robbens. 


          25          MR. ROBBEN:  [inaudible] judicial [inaudible]. 
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           1          THE COURT:  Turn his microphone or make him not 


           2     speak over the speaker. 


           3          MALE 1:  [inaudible]  


           4          THE COURT:  This court finds regarding the trust 


           5     that Mr. Robbens is not an interested person pursuant 


           6     to Nevada law. He has no standing to object to the 


           7     terms of the trust. He is not mentioned as a 


           8     beneficiary in the trust. 


           9          So that's what makes him a non-interested person. 


          10     Mr. Robbens has had months to produce evidence showing 


          11     that he is an interested person. One of the ways that 


          12     he could have done that was by showing that there was 


          13     a previous trust in which he was a beneficiary. 


          14          He has not done that. There has been no evidence 


          15     that he has been the beneficiary in a previous trust. 


          16     In numerous motions, Mr. Robbens has claimed that he 


          17     has evidence, but that has never been produced. 


          18          He is under the mistaken belief that if he simply 


          19     declares unilaterally that there was fraud, that there 


          20     was undue influence, that there was lack of capacity 


          21     or any other -- any other fact that might negate the 


          22     terms of the current trust that is before the court 


          23     today to be sure. 


          24          He has alleged that he has witnesses that can 


          25     testify to the terms of a previous will and/or I'm 
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           1     sorry, will and trust in which he was a beneficiary. 


           2     Those have not been produced in any evidentiary form 


           3     other than by a mere allegation. 


           4          He is in the mistaken belief, pursuant to a 


           5     California case cited as Barefoot, that all that is 


           6     necessary is that someone say, in this case Mr. 


           7     Robbens, that there was fraud, there was undue 


           8     influence and therefore the -- the terms of the -- the 


           9     trust are not valid. 


          10          But again, there is absolutely no evidence 


          11     produced by Mr. Robbens to back up his claims. He does 


          12     have exhibits to his petition, none of which establish 


          13     that he is a beneficiary in any previous trust. 


          14          The case that he does cite, the Barefoot v. 


          15     Jennings, I believe it is, that once he brings that up 


          16     then the burden shifts to, in this case, the -- the 


          17     trust with an almost impossible burden of clear and 


          18     convincing to negate the allegations by, in this case, 


          19     the petitioner. 


          20          Mr. Robbens misunderstands the California case, 


          21     which is not binding on this court in any -- in any 


          22     event. The Barefoot court said that, uh, essentially 


          23     do not misread their opinion to be that anyone can 


          24     oppose a will or a trust simply by saying that they're 


          25     an interested party. 
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           1          They used the terms that a well-pleaded 


           2     allegations showing that they have an interest in a 


           3     trust, which requires some modicum of proof from a 


           4     petitioner.  


           5          Again, for the third time, Mr. Robbens had -- has 


           6     produced no admissible competent evidence that he is a 


           7     beneficiary to any of the -- the wills or estates or 


           8     trusts in this case.  


           9          The court has found that Mr. Robbens is not an 


          10     interested party in this case, which means that all of 


          11     the -- all of the motions, all of the filings that he 


          12     has made, are of no value to this court because Mr. 


          13     Robbens has no standing to contest the will. 


          14          By extension, the motion for summary judgment is 


          15     also granted even though the court has found that the 


          16     original petition is -- does not concur standing or an 


          17     interested person to Mr. Robbens. 


          18          And Mr. McClure, you're going to prepare the 


          19     order. 


          20          MR. MCCLURE:  Very well, Your Honor. We'll -- 


          21     we'll -- 


          22          THE COURT:  Do you have any questions? 


          23          MR. MCCLURE:  Your Honor, just to clarify that 


          24     given the court's granting of the -- 


          25          THE COURT:  Wait. Mr. McClure, speak up. 
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           1          MR. MCCLURE:  I apologize, Your Honor. Given the 


           2     court's granting of the motion to dismiss and the 


           3     motion for summary judgment, the order will reflect 


           4     that all under -- other outstanding motion practice is 


           5     denied as being moot, is that correct? 


           6          THE COURT:  They are denied because this court 


           7     has found that Mr. Robbens has no standing and so the 


           8     -- the motions have -- have no legal validity. 


           9          MR. MCCLURE:  Thank you, Your Honor. We will 


          10     prepare the order, uh, in accordance with local rule. 


          11          THE COURT:  Wait just a minute. You can turn Mr. 


          12     Robbens back on if he wants to say anything. If he has 


          13     any -- 


          14          MR. MCCLURE:  Your Honor, we would -- 


          15          MR. ROBBEN:  I'll be filing my notice of appeal, 


          16     because [inaudible] their -- their -- my motion to 


          17     strike their motion for summary judgment, motion to 


          18     dismiss wasn't even considered in this. 


          19          That argued standing and I've got a great case, 


          20     so we're going to go ahead and let the Supreme Court 


          21     hear this and, uh, unconstitutional issues will, uh, 


          22     take it all the way to the U.S. Supreme Court and I 


          23     didn't consent to you anyhow. 


          24          You're a retired judge with no ethics. Very 


          25     unethical. Probably a child molester like the rest. 
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           1          THE COURT:  Well, Mr. Robbens, do what you think 


           2     you need to do. 


           3          MR. MCCLURE:  Your Honor, if I may, before we -- 


           4     before we recess this proceeding? 


           5          THE COURT:  Say it again? 


           6          MR. MCCLURE:  If I may, before we recess this 


           7     proceeding, in light of the history of this case, the 


           8     filings in this case and the conduct in this case, the 


           9     trust and the estate -- in light of this case, Your 


          10     Honor, the filing history and the events of this 


          11     hearing, the estate and the trust would like to make 


          12     an oral motion to have Mr. Robben deemed a vexatious 


          13     litigant pursuant to NRS 155.165. 


          14          THE COURT:  What? 


          15          MR. MCCLURE:  To have Mr. Robben deemed a 


          16     vexatious litigant pursuant to NRS 155.165. The 


          17     purpose of that is replete -- or I'm sorry, Judge.  


          18          The basis for that is replete through the filings 


          19     of this case and through the conduct at the hearings 


          20     in this case and is necessary because the filing of 


          21     Mr. -- or the finding that Mr. Robben is a vexatious 


          22     litigant will prevent him from continually serially 


          23     filing additional and new cases which work to the 


          24     detriment of the actual beneficiaries of this trust, 


          25     who then must see the trust be funded to pay for legal 
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           1     defense. 


           2          We feel it is necessary to protect the trust and 


           3     estate. It is a necessary basis upon which we may 


           4     request our attorney's fees and costs and it is also 


           5     necessary to protect the trust from repetitive and 


           6     serial filings. 


           7          And we request the court make that finding as 


           8     part of this order in the conclusion of this case. 


           9          THE COURT:  Well, it appears Mr. Robbens has 


          10     left, so the order is granted. 


          11          MR. MCCLURE:  Thank you, Your Honor. 


          12          THE COURT:  Or motion, not your order. Court's in 


          13     recess. 


          14          MALE 2:  [inaudible]  


          15          BAILIFF:  All rise. 
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